
South Walton County Mosquito Control District 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

      October 16, 2018 
Agenda 

 
    Call to Order 
  
    Invocation and Pledge  
 
    Approval of Minutes (motion) 

            
         Administration Items  
 

1. Financial Reports for September 2018 
2. Approval of Expenditures for September 2018 
3. Budget Amendments # 1 & 2 (motion) 
4. Other 

  
        
    Legal 
 

1. Attorney’s Report/Approval of Invoice (motion)     
  

   Operations  
 

1. Activity Report 
2. Drone Demonstration 
3. Other 

 
       Announcements  

1. FMCA Annual Meeting  Nov. 4-7, 2018 in St Petersburg FL  
 
   Seat 1- Commissioner John Magee 
 
   Seat 2- Commissioner Tim Norris  
 

    Seat 3- Commissioner Kristine Faulk 
 

                          Restate New Action Items 
   
    Public Comments 
 
       Adjourn 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

September 18, 2018 

 

The Board of Commissioners of the South Walton County Mosquito Control District held 

its Regular Board Meeting at the District Office at 774 North Highway 393, Santa Rosa Beach, 

Florida at 9:30 a.m. 

 The Commissioners attending the meeting were Timothy Norris, John J. Magee and 

Kristine Faulk.  Also attending were Acting Director/Operations Manager Harley Sampson, 

Office Manager Geraldine Via, and Office Manager Trainee Shirley Steele. Director Brewer was 

absent.  

The meeting opened with a Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Faulk, seconded by Commissioner Norris to 

approve the minutes of the August 21, 2018 Regular Board Meeting. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

The Financial Report for August 2018 was presented. A motion was made by 

Commissioner Norris, seconded by Commissioner Faulk to approve the Financial Report 

for August 2018. Motion passed unanimously.  

The Board reviewed the August Expenditures. A motion was made by Commissioner 

Norris, seconded by Commissioner Faulk to approve the August Expenditures. Motion 

passed unanimously. 

The Board was presented, for approval, Local Budget Amendment #9 in the amount of 

$27,000.00 to be transferred from Account #89 Contingency to Account #52.2 Chemicals. A 

motion was made by Commissioner Faulk, seconded by Commissioner Norris to approve 

Local Budget Amendment #9 as presented. Motion passed unanimously.  

The Board meeting dates presented for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019  

A motion was made by Commissioner Faulk, seconded by Commissioner Norris to 

approve the Board Meeting Dates as presented changing January 15th to January 8, 2019. 

Motion passed unanimously.  

Mr. Reed Hoffman, representative of Enterprise Leasing, was unable to attend today but 

sent in caparison for review. After discussion, the Board decided not to use Enterprise Leasing at 

this time.  

Office Manager Trainee Shirley Steele stated the ditch permit letter is still awaiting 

Attorney Myers approval. She presented a copy of the request by district resident for special 

consideration letter that was approved by Attorney Myers and the Board to be used when a 



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of September 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

request by district resident for special consideration has been received. The spray notification 

system will continue to be used as first priority.   

Office Manager Trainee Shirley Steele presented a draft for a Non-restricted On-Call 

policy for hourly employees. The Board agreed to implement a Non-restricted On-Call policy as 

follows.  

 

Non-restricted On-Call  

 

During off hours the Director is the contact for SWCMCD.  In the event that the Director 

is unavailable or tasks someone with this responsibility, the District will remunerate the 

employee at the rate of pay for one hour pay for each eight (8) hour shift if the employee 

is considered “non-restricted” or waiting to be engaged.  If the employee becomes 

restricted (i.e. cannot use his/her time for normal personal use) the employee will be paid 

at his/her normal rate of pay. Whether on-call time is hours worked under the FLSA 

depends upon the particular circumstances. Generally, the facts may show that the 

employee was engaged to wait (which is work time) or the facts may show that the 

employee was waiting to be engaged (which is not work time).  Should the employee be 

required to report to the office or attend to a field emergency, the employee will be paid 

for a minimum of 2 hours at his/her respective rate.  

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Faulk, seconded by Commissioner Norris to 

approve the Non-restricted On Call policy. Motion passed unanimously. 

Commissioner Magee inquired about the talking points for the Board to have if asked 

questions about water management and if they were sent to Attorney Myers for approval. He also 

suggested having the policy on illegal dumping sent to Attorney Myers for approval.  

 Commissioner Magee asked about water testing to be done on the ditches. Acting 

Director/Operations Manager Harley Sampson stated Amy Tracy with Hydro Solutions 

Consulting, LLC suggested turbidity water testing. Commissioner Norris suggested he and 

Acting Director/Operations Manager Harley Sampson meet with Alison McDowell with 

Choctawhatchee Basin Alliance and discuss suggestions for water testing.  

The Hand, Arendall, Harrison, Sale, LLC attorney invoice in the amount of $1,080.00 

was presented for approval.  A motion was made by Commissioner Norris, seconded by 

Commissioner Faulk to approve the August 2018 Hand, Arendall, Harrison, Sale, LLC 

attorney invoice in the amount of $1,080.00. Motion passed unanimously.  

The Activity Report for the month of August 2018 was presented. There were forty-five 

chickens that tested positive, forty for West Nile and five for Eastern Equine Encephalitis. 

Office Manager Trainee Shirley Steele informed the Board that Michael Midgett with 



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of September 18, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Unmanned Ingenuity, LLC, was unable to attend meeting to demonstrate the drone. The 

demonstration has been rescheduled to the next meeting. She also stated he did have good 

references.  

The Final Budget Hearing to be held on Saturday, September 22, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Norris, seconded by Commissioner Faulk to 

adjourn. Motion passed unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 10:22 a.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________     __________________________ 

Tim Norris, Secretary                 John Magee, Chairman 













 
SOUTH WALTON COUNTY MOSQUITO CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

Activity Report -- Month of September 2018 

 

► All programs operated as usual. 

►        Adulticide used: 

                              5.31  -  gallons – Kontrol       $     289.39        

                           80.50 - gallons – Deltagard     $13,980.43 

          Larvicide/herbicide used:        

                                                                      9.5 – ounces Coco Bear                $      1.42 

                   4.8  - pounds Vectobac WDG        $   168.00 

          46.00 - pounds Vectolex WDG          $2,752.64 

                                    329.00 - pounds Fourstar BTI CRG    $3,720.99 

                           283.00 - each Natular XRT  --------      $9,132.00  

   25.00 - pounds Natular G30  -----      $   366.00       

      .75- gallons-Cornerstone(herbicide) $        9.49              

 

 ► Service requests:        

               6 - Thank you           

            16 – Inspections 

            29 - Spray 

              4 - Ditch 

             12 - Larvicide 

       

 Total of 28 chickens tested positive for WN in September.        

        Report Date 9/07/18 1-WN collection date 8/13–Band 30 Site B19B 

4-WN collection date 8/27–Band 81 Site B21B, Band 76 Site B9B  

Band 95 Site SW13 & Band 51 Site SW18 

Report Date 9/21/18 9-WN collection date 9/04–Bands 20, 51, 52 Site SW17, Bands 41, 62,    

63, Site B7B, Band 71 Site B11B, Bands 44, 5, Site SW13 

5 WN collection date 9/10 Bands 21, 54, 55 Site B20B, Band 42 B11B, Band 54 Sw13 

Report Date 9/28/18 9-WN collection date 9/17–Bands 23, 45, 65, Site B14B, Band 68 Site 

B19B, Band 11 Site B7B, Band 47, 67 Site SW13, Band 27 Site BSW17  

 
North Walton Mosquito Control had 3 positive chickens for WN in September. 


